
Strategic Planning & 
Environment 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Agenda 

 
1 

 

TUESDAY 11 JUNE 2024 AT 7.30 PM 
 

Conference Room 2 - The Forum 
 
The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time 
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda. 
 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Anderson 
Councillor Birnie 
Councillor Deacon (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Gale 
Councillor Hobson (Chairman) 
Councillor Hobson 
Councillor Mitchell 
 

Councillor Patterson 
Councillor Pringle 
Councillor Riddick 
Councillor Santamaria 
Councillor Timmis 
Councillor Walker 
Councillor C Wyatt-Lowe 
 

 
 
For further information, please contact Corporate and Democratic Support or 01442 228209 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. DECISIONS & ACTIONS  (Pages 3 - 7) 
 
 To agree the decisions of the previous meeting. 

 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 
5. CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE IN 

RELATION TO CALL-IN   
 

6. Q4 NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES PERFORMANCE REPORT  (Pages 8 - 14) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

7. Q4 PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION PERFORMANCE REPORT  
(Pages 15 - 21) 
 

 
 



                                                              

Decisions and actions 
 

 
                                             Dacorum Borough Council 

 
                                    Strategic Planning and Environment 
                                             Wednesday 6th March 

 
 
 
Councillors:  Cllr Patterson 
  Cllr Mitchell 
  Cllr Wyatt-Lowe 
  Cllr Anderson 
  Cllr Santamaria 
  Cllr Riddick 
  Cllr Timmis 
  Cllr S Hobson 
  Cllr Walker 
  Cllr Deacon 
  Cllr C Hobson (Chair) 
   
 
Also in attendance:   

Cllr Bromham 

Cllr England 

 
Officers: (6) 
James Doe – Strategic Director - Place 

Stefania Horne – Strategic Director Neighbourhood Services  
Ian Ross – Head of Neighbourhood Management  
Sara Whelan – Assistant Director Planning 
Clare Dempsey – Financial Planning & Analysis Manager 
John Mooteealoo – Head of Environmental Services  
John Champman – Strategic Planning and Regeneration Officer 
Keeley Mitchell - Strategic Planning and Strategic Sites 
James Wrathall – Corporate Graduate  
 
 
The meeting began at 19:30 
 
1 MINUTES AND ACTIONS 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting were agreed 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes 
 
 
2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
There were apologies for absence from Cllrs Pringle, Birnie, Wilkie and England 
 
3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
4  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
None 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



                                                              

5 CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE IN 
RELATION TO A CALL–IN 

None 
 
The chair moved straight to item 9 to allow our guest from the Environment Agency could leave after 
his item. 
 
9  RE-ROUTING OF THE RIVER GADE 
 
Liam Dennis from the Environment Agency presented an update of the works planned for the River 
 
Full presentation can be found in the video minutes. 
 
 
6  Q3 QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 
 
The reports were introduced by Clare Dempsey 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes. 
 
 
7  Q3 PLANNING DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION REPORT 
 
 
The report was introduced by Sara Whelan 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes 
 
 
8  Q3 NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
The report was introduced by Stefania Horne 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes 
 

Actions: 
I Ross to investigate what happened to the previously designed verge hardening schemes. 
S Whelan to circulate CIL Guidance to committee/Councillors  
 
 
10  ALCOHOL RELATED PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS 
 
The report was introduced by Stefania Horne 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes 
 

Actions:  
S Horne to share the exact prohibition notice for the PSPO  
 
 
 
11  THE LOCAL PLAN REGULATION 18 FEEDBACK 
 
The report was introduced by Sara Whelan 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes 
 

Actions: LF To circulate the Task & Finish Documents 

Page 4



                                                              

 
12  AFFORDABLE HOUSING SPD 
 
The report was introduced by Sara Whelan 
 
Full discussion can be found in the video minutes 
 
 
13  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
No comments 
 

Page 5



Strategic Planning & Environment OSC Action Points - Jun 

 

6th Mar Liam Dennis to send 
contact details for areas 
of river where people are 
wanting to improve to 
report it too – Ian ross 
has contact details. And 
share a YouTube link 

LDennis 04/06/24 Presentation Emailed 
 
Link for video about the Boxmoor Project that we completed in 2018  - River 
Bulbourne, Hertfordshire - 2019 UK River Prize Finalist (youtube.com) 
 
Queries for other projects should be sent to Liam Dennis (liam.dennis@environment-
agency.gov.uk ). Liam will then signpost to the relevant person within the Environment 
Agency. 

2024.03.06 DBC 

Scrutiny EA Presentation.pdf
 

 

6th Mar Ian Ross to investigate 
what happened to the 
previously designed 
verge hardening 
schemes. 

I Ross 04/06/24 Presentation attached with the slide not for circulation removed. As for what will 
happen to the previously designed verge hardening schemes – these will be 
reassessed against the new criteria and if they meet that put into the prioritisation 
process. 

2024.03.06 SPAE 

Scrutiny Committee - Neighbourhood Management update [for circulation].pptx
 

 

6th Mar S Whelan to circulate CIL 
Guidance to 
committee/Councillors 

S Whelan 13/03/24 

CIL Members 

Presentation January 2024 - For Circulation.pdf
  

6th Mar LF to circulate Task & 
Finish document from Cllr 
Hobson 

LFowell 21/03/24 This was shared with the committee. 

6th Mar S Horne to share the 
exact prohibition notice 
for the PSPO  

S Horne  Chased 

P
age 6

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qerrpxT7PXM
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qerrpxT7PXM
mailto:liam.dennis@environment-agency.gov.uk
mailto:liam.dennis@environment-agency.gov.uk


 

 

P
age 7



   

 

   

 

Agenda Item 7 
 

Strategic Planning and Environment www.dacorum.gov.uk 

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 

 

Report for: Strategic Planning and Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
  

Title of report: Q4 Neighbourhood Operations Services Update 
  

  
  

Report on behalf of: Councillor Robin Bromham , Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhood Operations 
  

Part: I 
  

If Part II, reason: N/A 
  

Appendices:  
  

Background papers: None 

  

Glossary of NI = National Indicator 
 CSG = Clean, Safe and Green Service 

acronyms and any  

other abbreviations  

used in this report:  
   
 
 

Report Author / Responsible Officer  
Stefania Horne 

 
Strategic Director, Neighbourhood Operations 

 
 
 

Stefania.Horne@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 228957 (ext. 2957)  
 

 

    

 Corporate Priorities A clean, safe and enjoyable environment 

  Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery 

  Climate and ecological emergency 

    

 Wards affected All  
    

 Purpose of the report: 1. To provide Members with the performance 
   report for quarter 4 and progress updates for 
   Neighbourhood operations 

 
    

 Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s): 1. For information only. 
    Page 8

Agenda Item 6



   

 

   

 

 Period for post policy/project review:     

Page 2  

Page 9



   

 

   

 

1 Introduction 

 
1.1 This report presents the performance outturn for Neighbourhood operations during the fourth 

quarter (January to March) of the financial year 2023-24. 

 

1.2 The performance report has a total of seven reported indicators. Two reflect a National Indicators; 
NI 191 for the kilograms of residual waste (non-recycled) produced by each household every year, 
and NI 192 for the percentage of household waste recycled. The others are local indicators. 

 
1.3 The report also outlines progress on key initiatives and projects. 

 

2 Performance Indicators 

 

WR02 Household Recycling Rate 
 
2.1 The indicator measures the materials collected for recycling and composting as a percentage of the 

total household waste stream. DEFRA will not be releasing quarter 4 until July. This figure mirrors 
the National Indicator NI 192. The provisional recycling rate for the third quarter is 52.4% which is an 
increase of 3.4% from quarter three from the preceding year at 49%.  

 
There are seasonal variations in the household recycling rate, and in boroughs such as Dacorum the 
amount of green garden waste collected is a key influencing factor during the green waste 
subscription months.  

 

WR03 Kilograms per household of residual waste collected 
 
2.2 This is a measure of the amount of non-recycled household waste collected by weight and mirrors 

the National Indicator NI 191. The ‘waste data flow’ figures that we provide DEFRA for quarter 4, 
amount in Kg per household, is not available until July 2024, however the third quarter shows the 
provisional average figure is 93.33 kg per household which is a 11.67 Kg per household decrease 
from quarter three from the preceding year at 105.00 kg per household.  

 
This figure could be influenced by the cost-of-living crisis with households purchasing less 
commodities resulting in a lower waste per household or a slight increase in recycling. 

 

WR01 Reports of missed bins per 100,000 collected 
 
2.3 This is a local measure of service performance for Waste Operations based on reports of bins 

not emptied on their allocated collection day. The figure for Q4 was averaging 80 which is and 
improvement year on year with 22/23 Q4 reported average at 133 missed bins, which is one of 
the lowest figures achieved by the service. 

 

 
 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Justified Missed Bins per 100,000

KPI 2022/3 2023/4

Page 10



   

 

   

 

The reports of bins not emptied on their allocated collection day has reduced year on year, this 
is partly due to the small turnover of staff within the waste collection service ensuring a 
professional and knowledgeable workforce it maintained along with a more proactive regular 
monitoring undertaken by the waste supervisors.  

 

CSG02 Percentage of Fly tips collected within the set timescale of 7 days 
 
2.4 The Clean, Safe and Green (CSG) service carry out the council’s fly tip removal operation. 
 

In Q4, 508 fly tips were reported and 493 (97%) of these were cleared within the 7-day target, which 
is a small decrease of 1% on Q3 when 516 fly tips were reported and 505 (98%) were cleared within 
the 7-day target. For comparison in Q4 last year, 433 fly tips were reported and 413 (95%) were 
cleared within the 7-day target. 
 
This is the second quarter in a row that the target has been met and follows on from an internal 
change in the CSG management structure with one supervisor is now responsible for fly-tip removal 
rather than it being the responsibility of area supervisors, which seems to be aiding performance. 
 
Numbers of fly-tips remains high and CSG continue to work closely with colleagues in Regulatory 
Services to try and reduce the overall number. 

 
CSG05 Graffiti Removal – Percentage removed from Dacorum Structures within 7 days 

 
2.5  The Clean, Safe and Green (CSG) service carry out the council’s graffiti removal operation. 
 

In Q4, 35 reports of graffiti were received and 33 (94%) were cleared within the 7-day target, which 
is the same as in Q3 where 66 reports of graffiti were reported and 62 (94%) were cleared within 
the 7-day target. For comparison, Q4 last year, 27 reports of graffiti were received and 25 (93%) 
were cleared within the 7-day target. 
 
The trend in the number of graffiti incidents reported remains consistent with previous years with 
high numbers in Q3 and a reduction in Q4. 
 
Of the two incidents in Q4 that went over 7 days, one of these was due to an administrative error 
and the other went over the target period while we were awaiting a disclaimer from a third-party 
property holder, which is outside our control. 

 
ECP 09 – Number of High Risk Food Inspections achieved within the Quarter  
2.6 The percentage of high risk (A-D) food inspections/interventions achieved in Quarter 4 2023/24 
was 86.57% which is slightly lower than the quarter 3 when performance was 92.54%. The KPI takes 
into account what is due and what is done but does not account for premises that have ceased 
operating so the figures that are used to calculate this percentage include closed premises. There 
were 15 closed premises in quarter 4 and if these were removed then 116 out of 119 (97.5%) open 
premises would have achieved their high risk food inspections/ interventions and so the target for this 
KPI would have been met. The team will continue this approach of keeping the closed premises in 
the calculation of the KPI as removing them would cause difficulties in workplace planning due to the 
uncertainty of what premises will close in the year. However, commentary will be used to explain how 
many premises have closed and how this has affected the overall performance. 

 
RS01 – Number of Public Space Protection Orders and Littering Fixed Penalties Served 

  
2.7 The number of Fixed Penalties served in Q4 is a reduction on the last quarter. This is down to 
482 from 751. There is currently a high level review of environmental enforcement being undertaken 
in relation on how enforcement is carried out with more emphasis on behaviour change and 
awareness.   

Page 11



   

 

   

 

3 Key Projects and progress update 
 

Green Waste 
 
3.1 Green Waste (Garden waste) paid subscriptions went live on 1st March 2024 and the current 

subscription rate is slightly higher at 31307 compared with the same period for the preceding year 
at 30959. 

 
The 2024 data indicates that the subscription forecast would most likely achieve the same outturn 
as 2023 at approx. 35,000. 

 
 

Arboricultural contracts 
 
3.2 The contracts (2x general arboricultural lots, 1x woodland lot and 1x tree planting lot) have now 

been awarded with two companies (both respected in the arboricultural industry) being successful 
in two lots each. These new arrangements, along with changes being made to the council’s Tree 
Management Database (TMD), should allow works to be dealt with in a more efficient manner and 
allow better communication with councillors and residents. The contractors are required to use the 
contractor module of our TMD, which will allow works to be issued as they are generated and the 
contractor to close in real-time after completion, which will aid performance management. 

 
River Gade restoration 

 
3.3 On Friday 24 May, the Environment Agency confirmation that their Full Business Case had gone 

through the assurance process, and they have been given the green light to proceed with the 
project. Officers are now awaiting a final programme of works, which if received will be brought to 
the meeting. It is likely some enabling works will happen in June with the main works commencing 
in late-July/beginning of August. Officers are mindful that this is the busiest time of year in the 
park, so will be working closely with the Environment Agency to mitigate any risk both physical 
and to people’s enjoyment of the park. 

 
Green Flag Award and Anglia in Bloom 

 
3.4 All our sites have now been judged for Green Flag Award and we await the results, which will be 

announced in late July – our existing Green Flag Award sites are Bunkers Park, Canal Fields, 
Chipperfield Common, Tring Memorial Garden and Water Gardens. We entered a new site this, 
which was Gadebridge Park. In addition to Green Flag Award, the council has also entered three 
parks into Anglia in Bloom (regional Britain in Bloom competition) this year – the three parks are 
Gadebridge Park, Water Gardens and Tring Memorial Gardens. 

 
Playground Refurbishment Programme 

 
3.5 Tenders have now been awarded and the projects will be delivered in two phases as outlined in 

the presentation to the committee in March. The first phase commences imminently with 
completion by the school summer holidays – the sites in phase one are Croft Meadow, Flaunden, 
Tower Hill, Woodhall Farm. One scheme was move forward from phase two (Apsley Lock) 
meaning five schemes will now be completed as part of phase one. The remaining phase two site 
is Durrants Hill. The schemes for Miswell Lane and Warners End Valley were put back out to 
tender and are due back in late June  

 
Within each of the schemes awarded to date, there is inclusive equipment proposed in each 
scheme – officers are keen to build on this with any future schemes as well as including access to 
and from playgrounds. 

 
 

Verge Hardening Policy 
 
3.6 A draft policy/framework is now drafted and will be presented to a future meeting for comment 

before being formally adopted. The programme will now be called Parking Solutions Programme 
(or similar) to move away from the negative connotation of the definition of verge hardening, which 
can be perceived as not environmentally friendly.  

 
 

Page 12



   

 

   

 

SANG Delivery 
 
3.7 Following recent interviews, an appointment has been made to the SANG Delivery Officer. This 

role is key in delivering the commitments that have been made under SANG to support future 
housebuilding in the borough. We are awaiting confirmation of a start date but their initial focus of 
work will be to commence delivery of SANG obligations at Bunkers Park and seek the necessary 
permissions to commence works at Chipperfield Common. 

 
Gadebridge Park Splashpad 

 
3.8 Following some refurbishment works to the surfacing, the splashpad opened in early May and will 

be operational 7-days a week now until September. In spite of the unseasonal weather 
attendances at the facility have been good. 

 
Regulatory services 
 
3.9 Officers from Regulatory Service undertake a variety of service requests and dealt with 892 
service requests in Q4, the vast majority of which are dealt with informally.  
 
3.10 Officers have been updated the current Contaminated Land Strategy to bring the strategy in 

line with current regulations and best practice. Changes included a more streamlined version and 

updated in line with current best practice. This has been benchmarked with other authorities.    

3.11 The Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System return has been completed and returned 

to the Food Standards Agency. The authority reports on resourcing and is benchmarked against 

other authorities on performance with regard to statutory functions within the food service. All high-

risk inspections were completed by the team within the statutory deadlines. 54 Unrated inspections 

remain outstanding most of these businesses were not yet operating. 125 new businesses were 

registered within the borough in 23/24. The service issued 238 written warnings, served 1 hygiene 

improvement notice, carried out 1 voluntary closure and 1 Emergency prohibition order.  

3.12  Officers are currently drafting the update Air Quality Action Plan and Air Quality Status Report 

for 2023 and an update will be presented at Scrutiny in the Autumn.  

 

 

Page 13



   

 

   

 

 
4 Options and alternatives considered 
 

No options to consider, for information only. 
 

5.  Consultation 
A number of projects and initiatives are developed and implemented through consultation with 
partners and stakeholders. This includes for example the EA led project for the restoration of the 
river Gade and the development of the Air Quality action plan  
 

6.  Financial and value for money implications 
 All activities and initiatives are monitored through the Council’s financial monitoring frameworks 
 
7.  Legal implications  
 This is an update report and there are no direct legal implications to consider 
 
8.  Risk Implications 
 Risks are continuously monitored through the Council’s corporate risk management framework 
 
9.  Equalities, Community Impct and Human Rights 
 This is an update report and there are no direct implications  
 
10.  Sustainability implications (including climate change, health and well being, community 
safety) 
 This is an update report and there are no direct implications  
 
11.  Council infrastructure (including Health and Safety, HR/OD, assets and other resources)  
 This is an update report and there are no direct implications  
 
12.  Conclusions 

The new structure for the Neighbourhood Operations Directorate has now been embedded and is 
reporting a generally positive trend for its KPIs. There is positive progress in implementing the 
capital and other programmes including improvement of playgrounds, SANG delivery, the river 
Gade restoration and the formulation of a policy for a Parking solutions programme. The Green 
waste scheme is still proving popular and is well subscribed.      

 
 
 
Page 4 

Page 14



 

    
 

Strategic Planning and Environment 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

www.dacorum.gov.uk 

 
 

 

Report for: Strategic Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Title of report: Planning Quarter 4 Performance Report 2023-24 

Date: 10 June  

Report on behalf of: Cllr Sheron Wilkie, Portfolio Holder for Place 

Part: I 

If Part II, reason: N/A 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Performance Report 

Background papers:  

Glossary of 

acronyms and any 

other abbreviations 

used in this report: 

None 

 

 

  

Corporate Priorities - A clean, safe and enjoyable environment 

- Building strong and vibrant communities 

- Ensuring economic growth and prosperity 

- Providing good quality affordable homes, in 

particular for those most in need 

- Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service 

delivery 

- Climate and ecological emergency 

Wards affected All 

Report Author / Responsible Officer 

Sara Whelan – Assistant Director for Planning  
 

 
Sara.Whelan@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 228250 (ext. 2250) 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20E-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20F-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20G-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20H-1/c.aspx
mailto:Sara.Whelan@dacorum.gov.uk


Purpose of the report: 1.  To set out the performance outturn for the service 

for Quarter 4 of 2023-24. 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s): 1.  That the report is noted. 

Period for post policy/project review:  

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 This report presents the performance outturn for the Planning service for the fourth quarter (Jan – March) the 

business year 2023-24. The full performance report is at Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 The performance report at Appendix 1 shows a total of 5 indicators. Of the revised Key Performance 

Indicators, two are departmental performance measures and three are measures that reflect local 

construction activity. Of the two departmental performance measures, one is green and one is red. 

 
Planning Applications Determined Within Target 

 
1.3 The percentage of all planning applications determined within target (DMP01) sits at 86%, against a target of 

70%. The percentage is up from 82% compared to Q3. This represents sustained overall good performance 

from the team, particularly given the ongoing restrictions relating to the Chiltern Beechwoods SAC and the 

number of vacancies within the Development Management team. However, some caution must be added as 

this figure includes applications that were granted within an agreed extension of time. 

 

1.4 Major planning application performance remains at 100%. 

 

1.5 As for Minors and Others, they performed in Q2 as follows, against a 70% target: 

 

MONTH MINORS (%) OTHERS (%) 
Jan 2024  66.7 80.9 

Feb 2024 73.1 82.5 

March 2024 75 90.5 

TOTAL Q2 71.3 84.3 

 

1.6 Minors took a dip in January, but recovered well in February and March, so that for Q2 overall the 

performance exceeded the 70% target. In respect of Others (i.e. householders) the performance was well 

above target, and equally had an upward trend as the quarter progressed. From April 1st Officers have been 

informed that no Extensions of Time can be sought for householders. This is an internal measure introduced 

to ensure the completion of these applications within the statutory 8-weeks without relying on additional 

time agreed by the applicant / agent. It will be important to monitor the impact of this approach on 

performance in the next Quarterly Report. 

 

Enforcement Site Visits 

 
1.7 The percentage of all planning enforcement priority site visits (PE04) has gone up to 72% up from 32% the 

previous quarter, against a target of 100%. This upturn was forecast in the previous quarter’s report as the 

work of the additional resources (temporary Agency Enforcement Officer as part of the Reserves funding for 

this service) continued to come through. It is further anticipated that this performance will increase above 

90% in the next quarter.  

 

1.8 Furthermore, the Enforcement service remain focused on dealing with the most harmful breaches of planning 

control. A total of 6 formal Notices were served in the quarter (all Enforcement Notices). 

 

Page 16



Affordable Housing 

 
1.9 Indicator DO1 and DO2 – the number of affordable housing starts and the number of completions in the 

period has been changed to an annual rather than quarterly indicator, as a Local Authority we receive the figures 

annually. These are currently being ratified by Hertfordshire County Council and will be reported in Q1 report.  

 

Retail Properties 

 
1.10 For indicator CPE01 – the number of retail properties (vacancy rate) for the period – there is no data on this 

for the period as we are reliant on external parties. This will be reported at the earliest opportunity. 

 

Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace  

 

1.11 Box Moor Trust continue to work with DBC and both respective legal advisors on an agreement which can 

be used between Boxmoor Trust, applicants and DBC to allow Box Moor Trust to provide SANG credits for 

development sites within their catchment area. This is good news for future supply of SANG in the borough. 

 

1.12 The Council has a limited supply of SANG, which has been allocated to development sites in line with our 

Chilterns Beechwoods SAC Mitigation Strategy since November 2022. The Council is concerned that the 

supply of SANG at Chipperfield Common and Bunkers Park is reaching its capacity and are issuing an early 

warning notification in line with paragraph 7.1.13 of the Mitigation Strategy. This is to advise that capacity 

issues may arise and that we are reconsidering our SANG allocations protocol to be clear on the Councils 

priority for allocating SANG to small sites of 9 units or less as well as Council own schemes. This would 

remove any expectation of larger sites seeking DBC SANG.  

 
1.13 The Council is continuing to work on future SANG opportunities at Bunkers Park extension, Margret Lloyd 

Park, Howe Grove and Gadebridge park. However, these sites are not currently available to allocate SANG 

credits against.  

 
1.14 The Council is also reviewing our charge for SANG. This is currently set at £4,251.71 per new home. We will 

review this figure on agreement of the future Management Plans. There is an expectation that the cost per 

dwellings will increase.  Chilterns Beechwoods Special Area of Conservation (SAC) - Mitigation Strategy 

(dacorum.gov.uk) 

 

1.15 Ian Ross, Head of Neighbourhood Management is progressing all issues related to Secretary of State 

Applications for works on the Common (these types of works may include car parks, installation of signage 

and information boards, bollards and fencing). Trees and Woodlands are also meeting with specialist 

contractors to discuss works to Apostles Pond. Ian Ross is continuing to liaise with Chipperfield Parish 

Council.   

 

1.16 Following recent interviews, an appointment has been made to the SANG Delivery Officer, in the Clean Safe 

and Green service. This role is key in delivering the commitments that have been made under SANG to 

support future housebuilding in the borough. We are awaiting confirmation of a start date but their initial 

focus of work will be to commence delivery of SANG obligations at Bunkers Park and seek the necessary 

permissions to commence works at Chipperfield Common. 

 
1.17 Two planning applications have been received for SANG and are currently pending decision;  

 
• 23/02972/MFA Planning application for the change of use from agricultural land to 

Suitable Accessible Natural Green Space (SANG), together with a vehicular access, 

car park, paths, fencing and landscaping at Castle Hill Berkhamsted Hertfordshire – 

will be presented to DMC in summer 2024  

• 23/02508/MFA Planning application for the change of use from agricultural land to a 

Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) together with provision of a new car 
Page 17

https://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/planning-development/planning-strategic-planning/new-single-local-plan/chilterns-beechwoods-special-area-of-conservation/chilterns-beechwoods-special-area-of-conservation-(sac)---mitigation-strategy
https://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/planning-development/planning-strategic-planning/new-single-local-plan/chilterns-beechwoods-special-area-of-conservation/chilterns-beechwoods-special-area-of-conservation-(sac)---mitigation-strategy


park at Haresfoot Farm (Commercial) Chesham Road Berkhamsted Hertfordshire 

HP4 2SU – was recommended to grant planning permission and DMC resolved to 

grant planning permission at DMC in April 2024. This decision is now pending a 

Section 106 legal agreement  

 

1.18 The Planning Inspector has granted planning permission for 135 new homes at Rectory Farm, Kings Langley. 

The Inspector dismissed the Council’s arguments that the scheme did not comply with the Habitats 

Regulations and allowed the appeal on the basis that the imposition of a Grampian condition would secure 

the necessary SANG mitigation. The Inspector considered a Grampian condition was acceptable in this 

circumstance as it was within the catchment area of the Box Moor Trust and the Councils SANG sites. The 

onus is on the applicant to secure a SANG solution by a S106 Legal Agreement (as required by the Grampian 

condition) in order for the planning permission to be implemented.   

 

2. Options and alternatives considered 

 
2.1 Not applicable. 

 
3. Consultation 

 
3.1 James Doe – Strategic Director (Place) 

 
3.2 Diane Southam – Assistant Director, Place Communities and Enterprise  

 
3.3 Philip Stanley - Interim Head of Development Management 
 
3.4 Ian Ross – head of Neighbourhood Delivery  

 
3.5 Ronan Leydon – Team Manager, Strategic Planning 

 
4. Financial and value for money implications: 

 
Financial 

 
4.1 None arising from decisions on this report though the financial indicators for Planning fees report an under 

recovery of income against target levels. 

 
Value for Money 

 
4.2 None arising from this report. 

 
5. Legal Implications 

 
5.1 None arising from this report. 

 
6. Risk implications: 

 
6.1 None arising from this report. Risks addressed through service level risk register. 

 
7. Equalities, Community Impact and Human Rights: 

 
7.1 Community Impact Assessment - Not applicable for this report. 

 
7.2 Human Rights – There are no Human Rights Implications arising from this report. 

 
Page 18



8. Sustainability implications (including climate change, health and wellbeing, community safety) 

 
8.1 None arising from this report. 

 
9. Council infrastructure (including Health and Safety, HR/OD, assets and other resources) 

 
9.1 None arising from this report. 

 
  

Page 19



10. Conclusions: 
 

10.1 Not applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendix 1 - Performance Report (attached separately) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

Page 21


	Agenda
	1 Decisions & Actions
	SPAE OSC Action Points - June

	6 Q4 Neighbourhood Services Performance Report
	7 Q4 Planning, Development and Regeneration Performance Report

